

Sustainable Insight A roadmap to responsible soy

Approaches to increase certification and reduce risk

In collaboration with IDH, WWF, FMO and IFC

May 2013

kpmg.com/sustainability





© 2013 KPMG International Cooperative

Sustainable Insight: A roadmap to responsible soy: |3 Approaches to increase certification and reduce risk

Contents

Introduction	4
Executive Summary	5
Global demand for soy set to soar	6
Soy faces sustainability challenges	7
Compliance with national law is a problem	8
The GMO issue	9
Why responsible soy matters	10
Four key barriers to mainstreaming certified production	11
Certification makes business sense for producers	14
Certification brings further benefits to producers	15
An action plan to drive the growth of certification	15
Roadmap	16
Conclusion: response strategy and plan of action	18
About KPMG	20
References	22

Introduction



Soy is one of the world's most important and profitable agricultural commodities. But it is also controversial because its production is associated with significant environmental and social problems including deforestation and poor working conditions.

Many of these problems could be addressed by increasing the amount of soy that is certified against social and environmental production standards. Currently only 2-3 percent of global soy production is certified under a market recognized scheme.¹This paper has been prepared by KPMG International, in collaboration with The Sustainable Trade Initiative (IDH), WWF, FMO (the Netherlands Development Finance Company), and IFC (a member of the World Bank Group).

It seeks to address key questions including:

- What is driving the growth of the global soy industry?
- What sustainability challenges does the soy industry face?
- How can mainstreaming the supply of certified soy address these challenges?
- Does certification of soy make business sense for producers?
- What barriers are preventing the mainstreaming of certified soy?
- How can these barriers be overcome?
- What should corporate end-users of soy do now?

Executive Summary

Global demand for soy set to soar

- Demand for soy is set to soar as population growth and the growth of the global middle class drives demand.
- Demand from the animal feed sector is a key driver as is the growth of the biofuel industry, driven by some countries' commitments to biofuel use.

Soy faces sustainability challenges

- Soy production has been implicated in the degradation of ecologically sensitive areas and in poor labor practices.
- According to WWF, soy farming is the direct driver of at least half of native vegetation clearance in some of the world's most threatened regions.
- Soy also plays an indirect role in deforestation in the Amazon by providing an incentive for forest clearance.
- Labor conditions have been an issue with some cases of forced labor documented.

Compliance with national law is a problem

 There is evidence to suggest that a large proportion of small-scale soy producers in Brazil and Argentina are not compliant with national legal requirements on labor conditions, forest management, and basic farm health and safety requirements.

Why responsible soy matters

 Increasing the production of certified soy will help to address the industry's environmental and social challenges. • Sourcing certified soy will help to reduce reputational and commercial risks faced by soy end-users such as food companies and manufacturers of animal feed and biofuels.

Four key barriers to certified soy

- KPMG has identified four key barriers preventing the growth of soy certification:
- weak market demand for certified soy
- variable availability of certified soy
- fragmentation of the certification landscape
- the cost of certification for producers.

Certification makes business sense for producers

 KPMG analysis suggests that the average payback period for producers' investment in certification may be as little as 3 years. The best-prepared large producers can recoup their investment within 1 year while less-prepared medium-sized producers may achieve return on investment in less than 5 years.

Certification brings further benefits to producers

• Further benefits of certification for producers include access to growing markets for certified soy and access to discounts on agricultural inputs and finance.

An action plan to drive the growth of certified soy

• Addressing the four key barriers to certified soy production is not a job for producers alone.

- It needs a collaborative approach from both producers and end-users, traders and processors, investors and certification bodies, and governments and consumers.
- See action plan on page 16.

End-user strategies

- End-user companies such as manufacturers of food, animal feed and biofuel, arguably face the greatest risks from slow progress towards certification.
- KPMG recommends that these companies evaluate the issues and potential impacts, and develop a response strategy and plan of action.
- See framework of actions on page 18.



Global demand for soy set to soar

Soy is one of the world's most valuable food crops, yielding more protein per hectare than almost any other crop.² As the world's population continues to grow larger and wealthier (the total world population is forecast to reach nine billion by 2055³), protein demand is expected to grow steadily.

Previously 'poor' consumers are moving up the 'protein ladder' from a predominantly vegetarian diet to one that includes fish, poultry and meat. By 2025 demand for pork and beef is expected to grow by more than 20 percent and demand for chicken by nearly 30 percent, according to the Food and Agricultural Policy Research Institute (FAPRI).^{4,5}

Soy is likely to play an important role in meeting this implied resource challenge,

primarily through forming one of the key components in animal feed.

Currently about 70 percent of soy produced is used in animal feed.⁶ The high protein content of soy improves feed-to-meat ratios, particularly in poultry and pigs, but also in fish.⁷

Demand from the animal feed sector has been a key driver behind the rapid expansion of soy production in recent years, from 155 million tons in the 1998/1999 season to an estimated 265 million tons in the 2011/2012 season⁸– a 70 percent increase in just over 10 years. The role of soy in animal feed was reinforced when in 2001 the European Union (EU) banned the use of meat and bone meal in animal feed following the bovine spongiform encephalopathy (BSE or "mad cow disease") crisis.9

The use of soy oil in biodiesel has been the second biggest driver of soy demand.¹⁰ The growth in biodiesel production in turn has been driven by biofuel targets set by both the US and the EU. In the EU, 10 percent of all petrol and diesel used in transport must be biofuel-derived by 2020; in the US 36 billion gallons of renewable fuel are to be used annually by 2022. The consumption of soy oil for the purposes of biodiesel in the EU has grown from 0.6 million tons in 2006 to an estimated 1.1 million tons in 2011, or a growth of 90 percent over just five years.¹¹ Soy now accounts for 11 percent of the feedstocks used in the production of biodiesel in the EU.12



Development of soybean and meat production, 1961-2020

Source: FAOSTAT / FAPRI



Soy faces sustainability challenges

While demand for soy is riding high, its reputation is arguably at risk because soy is implicated in the degradation of ecologically sensitive areas and in poor labor practices.

"The responsibility of soy production in its current form has been widely questioned," says Cassio Moreira, Program Coordinator for Agriculture and the Environment, WWF-Brazil.

"For example, soy has been identified as one key driver of the destruction of the Brazilian savannah, notably the Cerrado, the biologically richest savannah in the world, and the Brazilian rainforest. In addition, labor conditions on soy farms in Latin America and emerging Asia have been criticized."

Brazil and Argentina account for nearly half of global soybean production.¹³ Most of the recent growth in production has been due to increasing the areas under cultivation in Brazil and Argentina, rather than yield improvements.

10 million hectares of new land for soy production were added in Brazil between

2000 and 2010 (an area roughly equal to the size of South Korea), a growth of 73 percent; eight million hectares were added in Argentina, a growth of 75 percent.¹⁴ It is estimated that up to half of this area may have been newly deforested. This expansion has been driven by a combination of factors, including the building of roads to connect isolated areas to ports, and government subsidies to soy producers. New breeds of soy that perform well in areas previously unsuitable for soy production, such as the tropical and acidic Cerrado, have also played a part.¹⁵

According to Moreira of WWF, soy farming is the direct driver of at least half of native vegetation clearance in some of the world's most threatened regions, such as the Brazilian Cerrado and Chaco Province in northern Argentina. In other areas, such as the Amazon, soy plays a more indirect role in deforestation.

"Even where soy farmers are not the primary clearers of forest land, there is still a strong link between soy and deforestation," according to KPMG's Jerwin Tholen. "Cattle farmers may clear the land, but the reason it pays them to do so is that there is likely to be a subsequent buyer for that land after they move on – and that subsequent buyer could be the soy farmer. In Brazil's Mato Grosso state, for example, clearing forest to create pasture can increase the land value by a factor of five, while upgrading the land to soy production doubles the price again."

In addition to the issue of deforestation, soybean monoculture can cause soil erosion and nutrient depletion. Our research suggests this can be an problem in Argentina especially, where land is commonly leased by farmers under short term contracts of 1 or 2 years, rather than being owned outright. These short term arrangements provide producers less incentive to maintain soil quality," says Jerwin Tholen of KPMG.

Labor conditions have also been an issue with some cases of forced labor documented, particularly in emerging producing countries such as India and China.

Compliance with national law is a problem



There is evidence to suggest that a large proportion of small-scale soy producers are not compliant with national legal requirements on labor conditions, forest management, and basic farm health and safety requirements. For example, a survey by lcone in Brazil found that most of the producers interviewed were not compliant with the Brazilian requirement to reserve part of their land for indigenous vegetation.¹⁶

The road to legal compliance can be arduous and costly for producers. Returning illegally deforested land to forest status can mean significant income losses. Paying full taxes and social security for workers that were previously employed informally can also add several percentage points to

"The road to legal compliance can be arduous and costly for producers."

operating costs. These costs, coupled with the difficulties governments face in enforcing laws, provide a disincentive for producers, particularly smaller ones, to strive for legal compliance.

The Argentinian and Brazilian governments are making efforts to put compliance within reach for the majority of producers. They have made legal requirements more practical, and set up processes for producers to take incremental steps towards full compliance. The new Forest Code in Brazil, which seeks a compromise between environmental and economic objectives, is an example of this. New deforestation is prevented while existing agricultural producers are either given amnesty (the small producers) or presented with a clear and pragmatic process for restoring deforested land (the larger producers).

The GMO issue

While most efforts towards making soy cultivation more responsible have focused on issues related to deforestation, labor relations and carbon emissions, another concern relates to the use of genetically modified organisms (GMOs). The use of genetically modified (GM) soy has been the subject of heated debate, and anti-GMO campaigners insist that GM soy can never be considered 'sustainable'.

In Argentina, nearly all soy grown is GM, while in Brazil around 75 percent of soy was expected to be GM in the 2011/12 harvest.¹⁷ The main arguments against the use of GM soy relate to uncertainty over the impact of GM crops on human health and on the environment. Regarding the latter, anti-GMO campaigners argue that soy could negatively impact biodiversity through accidental cross-pollination resulting in the supplanting of unmodified species by more competitive GM hybrids. The proponents of GM soy argue that it results in a net environmental benefit through the reduced need for fertilizers, and increased yields.

A joint review of the literature on the environmental impacts of GM soy, conducted in 2011 by the University of Wageningen and the consultancy companies CREM BV and Aidenvironment, showed that the evidence on the environmental impact of GM soy is mixed.¹⁸

The study found that, due to a lack of open pollination as found in GM corn, GM traits are unlikely to spread in environmental areas outside of the direct production area, but also that GM soy may have contributed to the spread of herbicideresistant weeds. Yields are not always structurally higher for GM soy compared to non-GM soy, but the report concludes that GM soy probably contributes to the spread of zero-tillage, an agricultural practice that results in greater nutrient retention in the soil.

Why responsible soy matters

The urgency of the problems around the rapid expansion of soy cultivation demands an urgent response, according to Jan Nicolai, Senior Soy Program Officer at IDH.

"Acting across the supply chain to develop a market for more responsibly produced soy is crucial to addressing deforestation, labor standards, chemical use and other issues. Soy certification is still in its early stages but it is putting in place processes and incentives for continuous improvement that have potential to deliver real progress."

Using certified soy also provides companies that finance soy production – or produce soy-derived food, animal feed or biofuels – with an opportunity to reduce their reputational risk.

In recent years, NGOs and activists have conducted high profile international campaigns to draw global attention to damage done to Asian tropical rainforests by the palm oil industry. Several high profile companies and brands have been targeted.

The palm oil campaigns have prompted many companies to review their palm oil sourcing policies and pay attention to their supply chains.

"Global NGO and activist campaigns have targeted palm oil in recent years, but attention is also being paid to soy. Rapid increases in soy production and its environmental and social impacts mean that soy is a potential target for campaigners. This poses a risk to companies that use soy, particularly large food producers," says Jerwin Tholen of KPMG.

"We are beginning to see more corporate attention being paid to the soy supply chain."

"Big companies understand that they are responsible for protecting the worlds' most important ecosystem services for their long term profitability. Of course, they are also vulnerable to public perceptions, and the high costs of product recalls. More generally, companies that are forced to make sudden changes to secure responsible supply in reaction to public pressure may end up spending more than companies that develop a strategy for doing so. We are beginning to see more corporate attention being paid to the soy supply chain."

For example, the Consumer Goods Forum – a network of over 400 retailers and other organizations with combined sales in excess of €2,500 billion (US\$3,300 billion) – has committed to help achieve zero net deforestation by 2020. It is working on a sourcing code for soy which its members can choose to adhere to.¹⁹

Certifying soy production could play an important role in reducing the socioenvironmental impacts of the soy industry and improving its level of responsibility.

Certification initiatives such as Utz Certified, the Rainforest Alliance and the Round Table for Sustainable Palm Oil have already demonstrated with other commodities such as cocoa, tea and coffee, how certification can build responsibility into agricultural production in a way that is globally recognized and commercially viable.

In the case of the soy industry, a number of certification and labeling organizations are active. The Roundtable on Responsible Soy (RTRS), International Sustainability & Carbon Certification (ISCC), ProTerra, and 2BSvs (the Biomass, Biofuels, Sustainability voluntary scheme) are the leading market recognized schemes. These schemes differ in terms of criteria and audit standards.

"WWF considers RTRS as the reference for responsible soy due to its strong and balanced socio-environmental criteria, its multi-stakeholder, democratic and transparent structure, and its solid audit principles. RTRS is also not perfect and demands continuous improvement just like the other schemes," says WWF's Moreira.

Much has been achieved in the last decade in terms of creating a certification and labeling environment for soy production, but the long-term goal of 'mainstreaming' certified soy production remains a long way off.

Currently only 2 to 3 percent of global soy production is certified.²⁰ This means soy lags behind other commodities where levels of certified production are far higher. For example, 14 percent of global palm oil production is now certified, 50 percent of non-farmed whitefish, and 16 percent of coffee.²¹



Four key barriers to mainstreaming certified production

KPMG has identified four key barriers preventing the growth of soy certification:

- weak market demand for certified soy
- variable availability of certified soy
- fragmentation of the certification landscape
- the cost of certification for producers.

Weak market demand

"The biggest single reason that soy certification is lagging is that soy remains a largely invisible ingredient in the final product," says KPMG's Jerwin Tholen. "Consumers do not 'see' soy on the supermarket shelves in the way they see fish, cocoa, tea or coffee."^{22,23} Demand therefore has to come from the end-users of soy including manufacturers of food, animal feed, and biofuel. Here there has been some initial progress. For example, the EU has acknowledged the importance of certification and provides tax rebates on biodiesel produced from certified soy and other certified oil crops. Some retailers in the Netherlands have required their meat suppliers to provide meat produced only with certified soy feed by 2015.

"Demand is vital to create a healthy business case for soy farmers to invest in responsible compliance," says Jan Nicolai, Soy Program Director at IDH. "Recently signed covenants with Dutch, Belgian and Scandinavian animal feed producers secure a northern European demand for responsible soy". Yet such commitments represent only a small share of market demand in Europe and outside Europe there is a lack of engagement of major consumer countries including the US and China. China alone represents 25 percent of global soy demand.²⁴

Says Jerwin Tholen of KPMG: "In Europe, certification is advanced because it represents a way for European companies to meet public demands for transparency and socio-environmental standards. It is a demand driven by risk aversion. In the US there is less demand for certification because the US produces nearly all of its soy domestically so there are fewer environmental and social issues."²⁵ "Without demand, there isn't going to be supply," says Agustin Mascotin, Executive Director of RTRS. "Nor will producers receive a premium for certified soy."

The level of price premium for RTRS certified soy is determined by market conditions and therefore not guaranteed. Some 25 percent of the soy certified by the RTRS label had not yet been sold at the time of publishing this paper (May 2013), although the certificates are valid for two years and RTRS expects that the remaining certified product will be sold before expiry.

Variable availability of certified soy

KPMG's research reveals concern within the soy industry about the balance between the supply of certified soy and demand. Certified soy is not always available at the right time, in the right region at the right quality and in the right quantities. This imbalance is in part due to the 'wait and see' approach of traders and processors. In cocoa, coffee and, increasingly, in palm oil, traders and processors have played an active part in connecting end-users to certified supply, even taking an active role in the certification process. This approach is thus far lacking in the soy industry.



Source: KPMG, Responsible Soy - Cost / benefit analysis of RTRS certification in Argentina and Brazil, 2012

The supply chain for soy is complex

Fragmented certification landscape

There is no shortage of certification initiatives around certified soy. A plethora of labels has emerged in recent years to provide assurances on issues ranging from biodiversity conservation, to labor conditions and greenhouse gas emissions.

However, the existing certification regimes for soy products do not yet offer full mutual recognition. Soy beans, when crushed, produce meal and oil in roughly a 80:20 proportion. While soy meal certification is dominated by RTRS, certification of soy oil is dominated by multi-crop labels such as ISCC and 2BSvs. This means that producers may have to invest in complying with two or more separate certification processes in order to receive premiums on both soy meal and oil.

The situation is improving as the certification bodies work on mutual recognition regimes. ISCC now accepts soy oil crushed from soybeans produced by RTRS producers, and RTRS has announced its collaboration with GMP+, a certification scheme that covers food safety in the meat value chain. However, continuous improvement and further collaboration between standard setters is required to overcome the distinctive differences between schemes.

Cost of certification for producers

Compliance with the certification regimes incurs costs for producers. They include annual audits, control systems to monitor compliance with certification criteria, investments in

"Producers that are some way short of legal compliance will face greater costs..."

community relations, and fees paid to the certifying organizations.

These costs can be significant, particularly for smaller producers. In addition, certification can require substantial amounts of time to be invested in record keeping.

A key factor for small producers is their pre-existing level of compliance with national law on issues such as deforestation and labor practices. Soy certification is dependent on full compliance with national laws, so producers that are some way short of legal compliance will face greater costs in achieving certification and therefore require greater incentives.

The new Forest Code in Brazil has added flexibility and is likely to reduce the cost of compliance for Brazilian producers. However, for producers to invest in certification, a return on that investment needs to be made more certain.



Certification makes business sense for producers

KPMG has undertaken in-depth research into the costs and benefits of certification under the RTRS label, the multi-stakeholder international roundtable established in 2006. The study was commissioned by IDH and co-funded by WWF, IFC and FMO and provides the first published quantitative analysis of the business case for RTRS certification for soy producers in Argentina and Brazil.

Experience and data on certification are still limited because RTRS certification was only recently introduced (the first RTRS soy was produced in 2011). However, KPMG has developed a comprehensive dataset by aggregating input from a range of businesses and non-commercial organizations, including producers, traders, crushers and NGOs. By making the analysis public, KPMG and its partners hope to reduce uncertainty and strengthen the case for certification in the soy industry.

KPMG's analysis shows that producers will receive payback on their investment in certification at different times, depending on the sophistication of internal controls and the size of the business.

The average payback period is as little as 3 years for producers larger than 2,500 hectares that are able to sell their full crop as certified. The bestprepared large producers can recoup their investment within 1 year while less-prepared medium-sized producers can achieve return on investment in less than 5 years. KPMG's analysis assumes a price premium of US\$1.5 per metric ton of certified soybeans, and moderate levels of discounts on farm inputs and financing.

The price premium modeled is realistic and conservative. For certified soy meal, the actual premium paid is currently around US\$3 to US\$4 per ton. For certified soy oil, premiums tend to be higher because refiners in the EU receive a tax rebate when they use certified soy oil in the production of biodiesel. Yet even under the less favorable premium assumptions of the KPMG business case, certification is shown to be a profit driver in the short- to medium-term.



The business case: five common producer types can expect attractive return on investment from certification

Type of producer	Area (Ha)	Info management system	Premium	Input discount	Finance discount	Pay-back period (yrs)
Brazil - Large producer	30.000	Strong	1.50	1,2%	50bp	<1
Argentina - Medium producer - Close to certification	2.500	Strong	1.50	1,2%	50bp	<1
Brazil - Medium producer - Close to certification	2.500	Strong	1.50	1,2%	50bp	2,5
Argentina - Medium producer - Far from certification	2.500		1.50	1,2%	50bp	3,5
Brazil - Medium producer - Far from certification	2.500		1.50	1,2%	50bp	4,6

Average cumulative cost-benefit shows for each year the average net benefit on every metric ton of soy sold up to and including that year

Source: KPMG, Responsible Soy - Cost / benefit analysis of RTRS certification in Argentina and Brazil, 2012



Certification brings further benefits to producers

Certification can help producers secure future access to markets, such as the EU, where a growing number of end-users are committing to certified soy. Certified producers may also benefit from implementing improved agricultural practices in fertilizer use and crop rotation, which may result in reduced input use, fewer incidents of chemical spills, and productivity improvements. Hard evidence on the value of these benefits is sparse, but it is likely they could be significant for smaller farms that have not benefited from large-scale investment and professionalization.

Discounts on agricultural inputs and finance are further potential benefits for producers of certified soy. KPMG's

research suggests that banks as well as suppliers of seed, fertilizer, fuel and other inputs, believe certified soy producers represent reduced risk. Some producers that meet certain criteria are already gaining access to farm inputs and financing at a discount as a result. In Brazil, certification can help producers gain access to subsidized loans through several government schemes.²⁶

An action plan to drive the growth of certification

"The main challenge for the soy industry is a cultural challenge," says Agustin Mascotena of the RTRS. "Everyone in the value chain needs to stop looking for 'guilty parties' and start looking for common solutions. They need to incorporate the concept of responsibility that is part of sustainability in every part of the business. "We need more public commitment from all participants in the value chain, and we need more government involvement and support. We need more support not only from the consumer countries but also from the supplier countries. But I think supplier country support in particular is going to come, as RTRS continues to demonstrate the positive effects of certification." Addressing the four key barriers to responsible soy production is not a job for producers alone. It needs a collaborative approach from both producers and end-users, traders and processors, investors and certification bodies, and governments and consumers.

On the following pages, KPMG sets out a blueprint of the key actions that need to be taken by all players in order to mainstream the market for certified soy.

Roadmap

	Governments	Producers	Standard setting bodies	
Increase demand for certified soy	Specify certified soy in government-procured meat, food and fuel products.		Collaborate to make the case for certified soy to food/animal feed/biofuel manufacturers and consumers.	
Overcome variation in availability of certified soy				
Overcome fragmentation of the certification landscape			Collaborate to improve inter-recognition between different certification standards in order to reduce costs, optimize premiums for producers, while streamlining track-and trace-infrastructure in a process of continuous improvement.	
Reduce the costs of certification / improve the business case	Governments of soy producing countries to enforce national laws, as the distance to certification once national compliance has been reached is relatively small. Use government training (agricultural extension) programs to explain to producers the benefits of certification and the practical steps involved to reach certification. Provide financial incentives for certified producers, for example through tax rebates.	Collaborate in p bodies to nego agricultural inpu Use certificatio arguing that ce and that, as a re or improved. St evidence base	Develop a basic certification standard for smaller producers that assures compliance on key responsibility issues but reduces the burden of monitoring. Provide free training and support to smaller producers. oroducer groups and with certification tiate discounts with audit providers and ut companies. on as a lever in negotiations with lessors by rtification results in better soil management esult, the value of their assets is maintained candard setting bodies should develop an for this.	

Financiers	Traders/processors	End-users	Retailers/ Consumers
Incorporate certification as a pre-condition for providing finance to companies in the soy supply-chain, including animal feed companies, biodiesel companies, fast-moving consumer goods (FMCG) companies, and traders/processors. Some banks currently do this in relation to palm oil (RSPO) certification.	Commit to sourcing 100 soy and communicate the consumers. Incorporate certified soy benefit, including on-pact	percent certified e benefits to use as a brand value/ < communication.	Demand and pay for certified soy from suppliers of soy- derived products.
Develop financing products aimed at covering the up-front costs of certification, which can be provided either to producers directly, or to supply chain companies that set up producer support programs.	Set up programs to active certification by doing one following: - raise awareness among p benefits of certification - sign advance purchase at - co-invest in the up-front of Focus first on growing re mainly for the European n a transition model that has the palm oil sector. Over time, develop flows certified soy that can be t starting with 'supply she	ely support producer or more of the producers of the greements costs of certification gions that produce market ('supply sheds'), as met with success in of 'origin preserved' raced back to its origin, ds' described above.	
	Encourage and work with bodies to increase collab recognition between star	n standard setting oration and mutual ndards.	
Screen soy producing clients for national compliance and agree timeline for compliance as a pre-condition for extending financing unless national legislation prohibits the extension of financing to non-compliant producers. Provide financing discounts to certified producers.	Commit to paying a reaso certified soy.	onable premium for	

Conclusion: response strategy and plan of action

Soy has an important role to play in feeding and fuelling a growing global population, but the industry faces significant environmental and social challenges that are likely to intensify as production increases.

Certification of soy offers a potential solution to these challenges and, as KPMG's analysis shows, there is a business case for soy producers to invest in certifying their production.

Some end-users of soy – including manufacturers of food, animal feed and biofuel – have committed to increase sourcing of certified product. However, the overall pace of change within the industry is slow, leaving companies exposed to reputational and commercial risks.

Various barriers are impeding accelerated growth in responsible soy production



and addressing these barriers requires action from all stakeholders including governments, investors, soy producers, traders and processors, end-users, retailers and consumers.

End-user companies such as manufacturers of food, animal feed and biofuel, arguably face the greatest risks from slow progress towards certification. KPMG therefore recommends that these companies in particular should evaluate the issues and potential impacts, and develop a response strategy and plan of action. Below we present a framework of actions to assist companies in that response:

Understand exposure

01	Conduct a risk assessment to assess your company's exposure to reputational, commercial and associated operational risks. Identify weak points and risk hot spots within your soy supply chain.
02	Explore the longer term risks. For example, increasing global demand for soy and declining yields could lead to security of supply issues; an increase in demand for certified soy combined with limited availability of certified product could lead to price increases.
03	Analyze the potential impacts of identified risks on your business.
04	Decide on the most appropriate response strategy, e.g. should you adopt a short term or long term approach?

Develop a strategic response

05	Identify potential responses, e.g. do nothing; substitute soy with alternatives that have a lower risk profile; commit to partial or full (100 percent) use of responsible soy over a pre-defined timeline.
06	Conduct a cost/benefit analysis of these alternative responses, taking into account the following elements: reputational costs, the costs of soy alternatives, the benefits of certification, the costs of certification and how these change depending on the speed at which you introduce certified soy into your products.

Refine the response

07	Analyze the available soy certification schemes and identify the most appropriate certification strategy for your business, based on credibility, traceability, availability and cost.
80	Analyze your supply chain and identify key partners – such as traders and processors – with whom you will need to collaborate in order to implement your certified soy sourcing strategy.
09	Assess the risks and benefits of purchasing soy certificates ('book and claim') vs developing a fully traceable supply chain.

Implementation

10	Establish the necessary partnerships and relationships required to implement the strategy.
11	Ensure senior management commitment and cross functional teams are in place within your business.
12	Incorporate tracking and tracing of soy into your business operations.
13	Establish internal monitoring and reporting systems on your use of certified soy and progress on delivering against commitments.
14	Implement an appropriate stakeholder communications strategy around your company's approach to using certified soy, to include suppliers, customers, consumers and investors.

About KPMG

KPMG's network of member firms provides Climate Change and Sustainability (CC&S) services in around 60 countries.

KPMG member firms are active in assisting clients – including corporates, policy-makers and NGOs – with the development of sustainable supply chains, and have particular expertise in soft commodities. Our member firms help clients to understand the economics of certification systems and to address the broader challenges of developing sustainable supply chains in a resource-constrained world. KPMG member firms have analyzed the business cases for certification of a number of soft commodities including cocoa and soy, as well as the economics of ecosystems services for various industrial sectors. In addition, KPMG member firms have assisted numerous clients in streamlining supply chains by simplifying the flows of goods, money and information to reduce risks and direct costs. kpmg.com/sustainability

© 2013 KPMG International Cooperative



IDH

The Sustainable Trade Initiative (IDH) accelerates and up-scales sustainable trade by building impact oriented coalitions of front running multinationals, civil society organizations, governments and other stakeholders. Through convening public and private interests, strengths and knowledge, IDH programs help create shared value for all partners. This will help make sustainability the new norm and will deliver impact on the Millennium Development Goals 1 (poverty reduction), 7 (safeguarding the environment) and 8 (fair and transparent trade).

Website: www.idhsustainabletrade.com



WWF

The World Wide Fund for Nature/World Wildlife Fund (WWF) is the world's leading environmental organization, with more than 1,300 projects operating in over 100 countries. WWF's vision is to build a future in which people live in harmony with nature. The WWF Markets Transformation Initiative seeks to shift markets of high impact food, fiber, and biofuels commodities toward sustainable production through its more than 50 commodity experts working around the globe, transformative work with industry, engagements with more than a dozen leading global financial institutions, and involvement with multiple industry roundtables. Together with large retailers, manufacturers, traders and investors, commodities can be produced more efficiently and responsibly, achieving significant environmental results for the planet's most critical ecosystems. Website: www.panda.org

FMO Entrepreneuria

Bank

FMO

FMO (the Netherlands Development Finance Company) is the Dutch development bank. FMO supports sustainable private sector growth in developing and emerging markets by investing in ambitious entrepreneurs. FMO believes a strong private sector leads to economic and social development, empowering people to employ their skills and improve their quality of life. FMO focuses on three sectors that have high development impact: financial institutions; energy; and agribusiness, food and water. With an investment portfolio of €6.3 billion, FMO is one of the largest European bilateral private sector development banks.

Website: www.fmo.nl



About IFC

IFC, a member of the World Bank Group, is the largest global development institution focused exclusively on the private sector. It helps developing countries achieve sustainable growth by financing investment, providing advisory services to businesses and governments, and mobilizing capital in the international financial markets. In fiscal 2011, amid economic uncertainty across the globe, IFC helped its clients create jobs, strengthen environmental performance, and contribute to their local communities-all while driving our investments to an all-time high of nearly US\$19 billion. Website: www.ifc.org

Acknowledgements

The publication was written by:

Jerwin Tholen

KPMG Netherlands Climate Change & Sustainability Practice tholen.jerwin@kpmg.nl Tel. +31 20 656 45 00

Michiel Lenstra

KPMG Netherlands Climate Change & Sustainability Practice lenstra.michiel@kpmg.nl Tel. +31 20 656 45 59

To find out more about responsible soy and what it means for your company, please contact the KPMG member firm in your country (see back page).

The authors would like to thank the following organizations for their contributions to the study referred to in this paper: The Roundtable on Responsible Soy, Solidaridad, Icone, and the many industry participants and experts who provided data and insights.

References

- 1 Estimate based on analysis by KPMG and IDH, covering the RTRS, ProTerra and ISCC certification schemes
- 2 Profundo, Verdeling van de economische waarde van de mondiale sojateelt, 2012
- 3 United Nations, World Population to 2300, medium scenario, http://www.un.org/esa/population/publications/ longrange2/WorldPop2300final.pdf
- 4 FAPRI World Agricultural Outlook 2011, http://www.fapri.iastate.edu/tools/outlook.aspx
- 5 United Nations, World Population to 2300, medium scenario, http://www.un.org/esa/population/publications/ longrange2/WorldPop2300final.pdf
- 6 Commodity Platform, Strategies for reducing the negative impacts of soy production, http://commodityplatform.org/ wp/wp-content/uploads/2011/06/factsheet_3_replacingsoy-in-animal-feed_revised_2010.pdf
- 7 Commodity Platform, Strategies for reducing the negative impacts of soy production, http://commodityplatform.org/ wp/wp-content/uploads/2011/06/factsheet_3_replacingsoy-in-animal-feed_revised_2010.pdf
- 8 ISTA Mielke, Germany, www.oilworld.de
- 9 http://www.fao.org/docrep/007/y5019e/y5019e08.htm
- 10 Profundo, Verdeling van de economische waarde van de mondiale sojateelt, 2012
- 11 USDA, EU biofuels annual 2012, http://www.usda-france. fr/media/Biofuels%20Annual_The%20Hague_EU-27_6-25-2012.pdf
- 12 USDA, EU biofuels annual 2012, http://www.usda-france.fr/ media/Biofuels%20Annual_The%20Hague_EU-27_6-25-2012.pdf

- 13 ISTA Mielke, Germany, www.oilworld.de
- 14 Productschap Margarine, Vetten en Oliën (MVO), Factsheet soy, 2011
- 15 Soyatech, How the global oilseed and grain trade works, 2008
- 16 Icone, Soy strategic gap analysis: Brazil and Argentina, 2011, note: interviews were conducted in the Brazilian states of Mato Grosso and Paraná
- 17 http://www.abrange.org/english/home_us.asp
- 18 http://awsassets.panda.org/downloads/ 2009_public_report_gm_soy_.pdf
- 19 http://sustainability.mycgforum.com/deforestation.html Accessed 09 April 2013
- 20 Estimate based on analysis by KPMG and IDH, covering the RTRS, ProTerra and ISCC certification schemes
- 21 WWF, The 2050 Criteria, 2012, http://awsassets.panda. org/downloads/the_2050_critera_report.pdf
- 22 WWF, The 2050 Criteria, 2012, http://awsassets.panda. org/downloads/the_2050_critera_report.pdf
- 23 TCC, Coffee Barometer 2012, http://www.newforesight.com/sites/default/files/ newforesight/TCC_CoffeeBarometer2012.pdf
- 24 ISTA Mielke, Germany, www.oilworld.de
- 25 Productschap Margarine, Vetten en Oliën (MVO), Factsheet soy, 2011
- 26 Instituto Socioambiental, Financiamento socioambiental no Brasil, 2011

Contact your local member firm professional

Argentina Martin Mendivelsua mmendivelzua@kpmg.com.ar

Australia Adrian V. King avking@kpmg.com.au

Austria Peter Ertl pertl@kpmg.at

Azerbaijan Vugar Aliyev valiyev@kpmg.az

Baltics Gregory Rubinchik grubinchik@kpmg.com

Belgium Mike Boonen mboonen@kpmg.com

Brazil Sidney Ito sito@kpmg.com.br

Bulgaria EmmanuelTotev etotev@kpmg.com

Canada Bill J. Murphy billmurphy@kpmg.ca

Chile Alejandro Cerda acerda@kpmg.com

China Leah Jin leah.jin@kpmg.com

Colombia Fabián Echeverría Junco fecheverria@kpmg.com.co

Cyprus Iacovos Ghalanos iacovos.ghalanos@kpmg.com.cy

Czech Republic Michal Bares mbares@kpmg.cz

Denmark Christian Honoré chonore@kpmg.dk

Finland Nathalie Clément nathalie.clement@kpmg.fi

🕑 in 💱 手

kpmg.com/socialmedia

Finland Tomas Otterström tomas.otterstrom@kpmg.fi

France Philippe Arnaud parnaud@kpmg.fr

Georgia & Armenia Andrew Coxshall acoxshall@kpmg.ru

Germany Jochen Pampel jpampel@kpmg.com

Greece George Raounas graounas@kpmg.gr

Hungary Gabor Cserhati gabor.cserhati@kpmg.hu

India Raajeev Batra rbbatra@kpmg.com

India Santhosh Jayaram santhoshj@kpmg.com

Indonesia Iwan Atmawidjaja iwan.atmawidjaja@kpmg.co.id

Ireland Eoin O'Lideadha eoin.olideadha@kpmg.ie

Israel Oren Grupi ogrupi@kpmg.com

Italie PierMario Barzaghi pbarzaghi@kpmg.it

Japan Yoshitake Funakoshi yoshitake.funakoshi@jp.kpmg.com

Japan Kazuhiko Saito kazuhiko.saito@jp.kpmg.com

Kazakhstan Alun Bowen abowen@kpmg.kz

Luxemburg Jane Wilkinson jane.wilkinson@kpmg.lu Malaysia Lamsang Hewlee hewlee@kpmg.com.my

Mexico Jesus Gonzalez jesusgonzalez@kpmg.com.mx

Netherlands Bernd Hendriksen hendriksen.bernd@kpmg.nl

New Zealand Jamie Sinclair jpsinclair@kpmg.co.nz

Nigeria Tomi Adepoju t.adepoju@kpmg.com

North India Yasir Ahmad yahmad@kpmg.com

Norway Jan-Erik Martinsen jan.erik.martinsen@kpmg.no

Philippines Henry D. Antonio hantonio@kpmg.com

Poland Krzysztof Radziwon kradziwon@kpmg.pl

Portugal Filipa Rodrigues filiparodrigues@kpmg.com

Romania Gheorghita Diaconu gdiaconu@kpmg.com

Russia Igor Korotetskiy ikorotetskiy@kpmg.ru

Singapore Sharad Somani sharadsomani@kpmg.com.sg

Slovakia Quentin Crossley qcrossley@kpmg.sk

South Africa Neil Morris neil.morris@kpmg.co.za

South Korea Sungwoo Kim sungwookim@kr.kpmg.com Spain Jose Luis Blasco Vazquez jblasco@kpmg.es

Sri Lanka Ranjani Joseph ranjanijoseph@kpmg.com

Sweden Ase Bäckström ase.backstrom@kpmg.se

Switzerland Silvan Jurt sjurt@kpmg.com

Taiwan Charles Chen charleschen@kpmg.com.tw

Thailand Paul Flipse pflipse1@kpmg.co.th

U.A.E. Sudhir Arvind sarvind@kpmg.com

U.A.E. and Oman (Lower Gulf) Andrew Robinson arobinson1@kpmg.com

UK Vincent Neate vincent.neate@kpmg.co.uk

Ukraine Olena Makarenko omakarenko@kpmg.ua

US John R. Hickox jhickox@kpmg.com

Venezuela Jose O. Rodrigues jrodrigues@kpmg.com

Vietnam & Cambodia Paul Bahnisch pbahnisch1@kpmg.com.vn

The information contained herein is of a general nature and is not intended to address the circumstances of any particular individual or entity. Although we endeavor to provide accurate and timely information, there can be no guarantee that such information is accurate as of the date it is received or that it will continue to be accurate in the future. No one should act on such information without appropriate professional advice after a thorough examination of the particular situation.

© 2013 KPMG International Cooperative ("KPMG International"), a Swiss entity. Member firms of the KPMG network of independent firms are affiliated with KPMG International. KPMG International provides no client services. No member firm has any authority to obligate or bind KPMG International or any other member firm vis-a-vis third parties, nor does KPMG International have any such authority to obligate or bind any member firm. All rights reserved. The KPMG name, logo and "cutting through complexity" are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Publication name: A roadmap to responsible soy

Publication number: 052013

Publication date: May 2013

Printed in the Netherlands